
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
REGULAR MEETING April 10, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Fr. Michael Watson, St. Mary Church 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on March 27, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree 

Commission Meeting held on February 28, 2017.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Public Works/Public 

Utilities Meeting held on October 4, 2016.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission 

Meeting held March 1, 2017. 
D. Resolution No. 17-24, a resolution amending Resolution No. 13-19 

establishing the City of Delaware Sister City Advisory Board. 
E. Resolution No. 17-25, a resolution appointing members to various 

boards, commissions, and/or committees, and specifying the terms 
of the appointment.  

F. Establish April 24, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-22, an 
ordinance for Redhawk Property Investments Inc. for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing an Outdoor Seating Area for Yumii 
Kettle Corn at 339 South Sandusky Street on 0.52 acres zones B-3 
(Community Business District). 



2 
 

G. Establish April 24, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-23, an 
ordinance for Shorty’s Casual Cuisine for approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit to construct a permanent Outdoor Patio at 554 West 
Central Avenue on approximately 1.1 acres zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District). 

H. Establish April 24, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-24, an 
ordinance for Tim Colatruglio for approval of a Rezoning 
Amendment from B-3 (Community Business District) and R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) to B-3 and R-4 PMU 
(Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street Business Park 
on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street and Ordinance No. 17-25 , an ordinance 
for Tim Colatruglio for approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) for River Street Business Park on thirteen properties 
encompassing approximately 2.594 acres located at 45 River 
Street.  

   
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamation presentation to MADD on Recognition of 
PowerTalk21 Day. 

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMITS 

A. ALDI Inc. Ohio, DBA ALDI, 973 Sunbury Road, Delaware, OH 
43015. Permit Classes: C1 and C2. 

 
10. 7:15 P.M. PUBLIC COMMENT AND THIRD READING of Resolution No. 

17-20, a resolution accepting the City of Delaware’s Bike Master Plan 
2025. 

  
11. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 17-16, an ordinance approving an 

amendment to Chapter 1168.07 replacement of removed trees of Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code.  

 
12. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-26, a resolution establishing a 

Solid Waste Bulk Item Collection Pilot Program.  
 
13. CONSIDERATON  of Resolution No. 17-27, a resolution adopting a code 



3 
 

of conduct for appointed officials.   
 
14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-22, an ordinance for Redhawk 

Property Investments Inc. for approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
allowing an Outdoor Seating Area for Yumii Kettle Corn at 339 South 
Sandusky Street on 0.52 acres zoned B-3 (Community Business District). 

 
15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-23, an ordinance for Shorty’s 

Casual Cuisine for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to construct a 
permanent Outdoor Patio at 554 West Central Avenue on approximately 
1.1 acres zoned B-3 (Community Business District).  

 
16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-24, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio for approval of a Rezoning Amendment from B-3 (Community 
Business District) and R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) to B-3 
and R-4 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 
acres located at 45 River Street.  

 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-25, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 
acres located at 45 River Street.  

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-26, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for River 
Street Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-27, an ordinance for Maronda 

Homes approving a Final Subdivision Plat for Curtis Farms, Phase 4 
consisting of 32 single family lots on approximately 7.411 acres zoned R-
4 (Medium Density Residential District) and located on Delaware Drive.  

 
20. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
21. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
22. ADJOURNMENT 































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-24 
 
READING:  FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 13-19 ESTABLISHING THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE SISTER CITY ADVISORY BOARD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution amends the composition of the sister city advisory board, 
removing two appointed representatives from specific entities and one council 
representative, while increasing the citizen participation.  As a result of these 
changes, the committee retains an odd number of members but shrinks by two 
members overall. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Delaware County Convention and Visitors Bureau and the Chamber of 
Commerce are in agreement with this change to facilitate consistent 
participation.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 



 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-24 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 13-19 
ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF DELAWARE SISTER 
CITY ADVISORY BOARD. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has established several Sister City 

relationships through the years; the first in 1963 with Goulborn, New South 
Wales, Australia, as a part of the “People-to-People Program” established by 
President Dwight D. Eisenhower, and then with Omuntninsk, Russia, and 
Baumholder, Germany; and 
 

WHEREAS, City Council believes strengthening and maintaining Sister 
City relationships and exploring new partnerships is valuable and necessary to 
the on-going economic and cultural growth of the City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware continues to benefit from the continued 

international exchange of information facilitated through the creation of a Sister 
City Advisory Board established in Resolution 13-19. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio:  
 

SECTION 1. That that the composition of the Advisory Board shall be 
amended as follows: 

  2 1   Representatives from City Council  
  3 4  Representatives from the public 
  1    Representative from Delaware City School District  
  1    Representative from Ohio Wesleyan University  
  1    Representative from the Chamber of Commerce 
  1    Representative from the Delaware County Convention and Visitors 

Bureau 
 
Ex-officio Members: 
City Manager 
Assistant City Manager  
Community Affairs Coordinator  

 
SECTION 2. That the four (4) members from the public and the one (1) City 

Council Representative shall be appointed by the Mayor with confirmation of the 
City Council from a list of citizen candidates.  The Delaware City School District 
and Ohio Wesleyan University will recommend a representative which will be 
confirmed by the Mayor and City Council. 

   
SECTION 3. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 



 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-25 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE 
APPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-25 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND 
SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – Michael Rush-New 

Appointment (filling unexpired At-Large term December 31, 2014 – 
December 31, 2017) 
 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-20 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       April 10, 2017 at 7:15 p.m.  
                                                              Public Comment 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S BIKE MASTER PLAN 
2025. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City of Delaware entered into a contract in June of 2015 with Stantec 
Consulting Services to perform an update of the bike plan for the City. The plan 
and recommendations were presented to the Parks and Recreation Board on 
October 18, 2016.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The adoption of the Bike Plan 2025 outlines and ranks the proposed projects to 
be implemented. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parks and Recreation Board 
recommendation at the February 21, 2017 meeting. The Planning Commission 
recommended approval at the March 01, 2017 meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The fiscal impacts are on an annual basis and will be partially offset by impact 
fees and grants.  



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Various 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Bike Plan 2025 
Priority Trail Projects- east 
Priority Trail Projects-west 
Priority Trail Projects-south 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-20 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE’S BIKE MASTER PLAN 2025.  

 
WHEREAS, a need exists to update the 2010 Bikeway Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware entered into an agreement with Stantec 

Consulting Services to complete an assessment of existing conditions, a public 
engagement and visioning process, and recommendations to implement the 
vision; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the plan 

on February 21, 2017 as outlined in the attached exhibits; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment will be taken on April 10, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the Bike Plan 2025 as outlined in the attached exhibits. 
 
That this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 













  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-16    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 27, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1168.07 
REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE 
PRESERVATION REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the amendments to Chapter 1168 is to clearly identify the tree 
banking options for replacement trees and how any funds acquired via the 
payment in lieu of planting regulations can be spent.  The updated code clarifies 
for applicants (developers), staff and the public the processes outlined in current 
code as well as the current and past administrative practice of the City in this 
regard.  The intent of replacement and removed trees overall is to maintain an 
equivalent tree canopy Citywide before and after removal and/or construction.  
Overall then, the new code sections simply codify the current and past practices 
of the city while making this section much clearer. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130.04 amendments initiated by the Planning Commission must 
be appointed by City Council. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on March 1, 2017. 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
CHAPTER 1168.07 REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED 
TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE PRESERVATION 
REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
March 1, 2017, recommended approval of an amendment to Chapter 1168.07 
Replacement of Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of 
the Planning and Zoning Code (PC 2017-0014). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the amendment to Chapter 1168.07 Replacement of 
Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and 
Zoning Code is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 12    DATE:  04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-26 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SOLID WASTE BULK ITEM COLLECTION 
PILOT PROGRAM. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Following a comprehensive review of the Solid Waste Collection Programs 
offered by the City of Delaware, a proposal to establish a six month pilot 
program for bulk item collection, an industry standard, was endorsed by the 
Public Works/Public Utilities Committee at the meeting held on April 4, 2017. 
A three month evaluation report of the status of the program will be presented 
to the Public Works/Public Utilities Committee to gauge the program’s success 
and the cost effectiveness of the program at that point in time.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To provide an alternative to city residents for the disposal of items that are not 
able to be placed in city issued tipcarts and provide a program that is 
considered an industry standard. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works/Public Utilities endorsed the establishment of the six month 
pilot program at their April 4, 2017, meeting. 
 
 
 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The fiscal impact will be determined as the program progresses with three 
month and six evaluations presented to compare the cost of the service versus 
the fees collected from the participants for the service. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Bulk Item Collection Pilot Program Proposal from 2017 Solid Waste 
Management Program Update 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-26 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SOLID WASTE BULK 
ITEM COLLECTION PILOT PROGRAM. 

 
WHEREAS, bulk item collection programs are an established industry 

standard; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Delaware request bulk item collection routinely 
and would benefit if such a program was available; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works/Public Utilities Committee has endorsed the 

establishment of a Bulk Item Collection Pilot Program for a period of six months 
as outlined in the attached exhibit; and 

 
WHEREAS, a three month evaluation report will be presented to the Public 

Works/Public Utilities Committee to gauge the program’s success to date; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  A Bulk Item Collection Pilot Program will be established for a 
period of six months, with bulk collection pick-ups to be conducted on the 
second Tuesday of each month beginning on May 9, 2017.  

 
SECTION 2. A three month evaluation will be presented to the Public 

Works/Public Utilities Committee to gauge the program’s success at the mid-
way point.  

 
That this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately after its 

passage. 
 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 ACCEPT____ REJECT____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-27 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CODE OF CONDUCT FOR APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Council has long had an ethics policy that applies to Council, staff, and members 
of city Boards and Commissions.  At a prior meeting, Council asked staff to draft 
a conduct policy for appointed officials that would cover things beyond ethics.  
The attached draft was adapted from samples collected from other cities. 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This policy is purely optional. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
This policy adds a layer of guidance regarding how appointed officials will 
conduct themselves and interact with colleagues. In the event there is a potential 
violation of the policy, this document establishes a conduct committee to 
examine the situation and make recommendations to Council. 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Code of Conduct for Appointed Officials 
Resolution No. 12-29 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-27 
 

 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CODE OF CONDUCT FOR 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS. 

 
WHEREAS, The Delaware City Council desires to adopt a Code of Conduct 

governing its conduct of members of city boards and commissions. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Council of the City of Delaware, 

Ohio that: 
 

SECTION 1. There is hereby adopted the City of Delaware Code of Conduct 
for Elected and Appointed Officials which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 
 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
after its passage.  

 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Delaware 
 
 

Code of Conduct 
For 

Appointed Officials 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted  ________, 2017 by Resolution No. 2017-___ 



A. Policy Purpose 
 
The Delaware City Council adopts this Code Conduct to assure that all appointed officials, while 
exercising their office, conduct themselves in a manner that will instill public confidence and trust 
in the fair operation and integrity of City government.  This Policy is intended to be used in 
conjunction with the Delaware Ethics Policy, adopted on July 9, 2012 (Resolution No. 12-29). 

 
A. General Conduct Guidelines 

 
Therefore, members of the City’s Boards, Committees and Commissions (Members) shall conduct 
themselves in accordance with the following standards: 

 
1. Conduct of Members. The professional and personal conduct of members while exercising 

their office must be above reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Members 
shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the character or 
motives of other members of Council, Boards, Committees and Commissions, the staff or public. 

 
2. Respect for Process. Members shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and 

rules of order established by the City Council. 
 
3. Conduct at Public Meetings.  Members shall prepare themselves for public issues; listen 

courteously and attentively to all public discussions before the body; and focus on the business at 
hand. 

 
4. Confidential Information. Members must maintain the confidentiality of all written materials 

and verbal information provided to members which is confidential or privileged. Members shall 
neither disclose confidential information without proper legal authorization, nor use such 
information to advance their personal, financial or other private interests. 

 
5. Positive Work Place Environment. Members shall support the maintenance of a positive and 

constructive work place environment for Members, City employees, and for citizens and 
businesses dealing with the City. 

 
6. Practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate. Difficult questions, tough challenges 

to a particular point of view, and criticism of ideas and information are legitimate elements of 
debate by a free democracy in action. Free debate does not require nor justify, however, public 
officials to make belligerent, personal, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or disparaging 
comments. 

 
7. Avoid personal comments that could offend other members or members of the public. 

 
 
B. Improper Conduct 

 
Counseling, verbal reprimands and written warnings may be administered by the Mayor to Board, 
Committee and Commission members failing to comply with City policy.  
 
Prior to removing a Board, Committee, or Commission member for improper conduct under these 



guidelines, City Council shall convene a Member Conduct Committee comprised of a citizen member of 
the Planning Commission, Airport Commission, Historic Preservation Commission, and Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  The City Attorney will chair the meeting, but shall not have a vote.   
 
The Member Conduct Committee will review the conduct alleged to be in violation of this policy and 
make a recommendation to City Council.  The member charged with inappropriate conduct will have the 
opportunity to attend the meeting, bring legal counsel, and provide a statement and/or present evidence 
and witness testimony in his/her favor. 
 
The City Council may adopt,  amend,  or reject  the recommendation of the Committee by 
a majori ty vote at a noticed public meeting and such action shall be preceded by a Report to Council 
with supporting documentation. 



RESOLUTION NO. 12-29 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A COUNCIL RELATIONS 
POLICY AND CODE OF ETHICS FOR THE DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL. 

WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 99-92, the Delaware City Council adopted a 
Council Relations Policy and Code of Ethics; and 

WHEREAS, The Delaware City Council desires to adopt a revised Code of 
Ethics governing its conduct and the conduct of city employees and members of 
city boards and commissions, 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
Ohio that: 

SECTION 1. There is hereby adopted the City of Delaware Ethics Policy 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. The City of Delaware Ethics Policy replaces the Council 
Relations Policy and Code of Ethics passed by Council in 1999 . 

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
after its passage. ~ 

PASSED: '1 ~q ,2012 YEAS { NAYS 0 

ATTEST: (} illA.~.J.? ~ " lL",.--- As:;LIN: vvSl....-'-~ 
CITY~ M~ 



City of Delaware Ethics Policy 

Policy Statement 
It is policy of the City of Delaware to carry out its mission in accordance with the strictest ethical 
guidelines and to ensure that City Council members, Boards and Commissions members, and city 
employees (collectively, "city officials") conduct themselves in a manner that fosters public 
confidence in the integrity of the city and its processes. 

General Standards of Ethical Conduct 
City officials must, at all times, abide by protections to the public embodied in Ohio's ethics laws, as 
found in Chapters 102 and 2921 of the Ohio Revised Code, and as interpreted by the Ohio Ethics 
Commission and Ohio courts. In addition, City Council members must abide by Delaware Charter 
Section 52. 

City officials must conduct themselves, at all times, in a manner that avoids favoritism, bias, and the 
appearance of impropriety. 

A general summary of the restraints upon the conduct of all officials and employees includes, but is 
not limited to, those listed below. No city official shall: 

• Solicit or accept anything of value from anyone doing business with the city; 
• Solicit or accept employment from anyone doing business with the city, unless the board 

member, commission member, or employee completely withdraws from city activity 
regarding the party offering employment, and the city manager approves the withdrawal. In 
order for a City Council member to withdraw, the member must notify the remaining City 
Council members in writing; 

• Use his or her public position to obtain anything of value for the official, a family member, or 
anyone with whom the official or employee has a business or employment relationship. This 
includes, but is not limited to obtaining a job (see definition of Anything of value" provided 
below); 

• Be paid or accept any form of compensation for personal services rendered on a matter before 
any board, commission, or other body of the City, unless the official qualifies for the 
exception, and files the statement, described in R.C. 102.04(D); 

• Hold or benefit from a contract with, authorized by, or approved by, the City, (the Ethics Law 
does except some limited stockholdings, and some contracts objectively shown as the lowest 
cost services, where all criteria under R.C. 2921.42 are met); 

• Vote, authorize, recommend, or in any other way use his or her position to secure approval of an 
city contract (including employment or personal services) in which the official or employee, 
a family member, or anyone with whom the official or employee has a business or 
employment relationship, has an interest; 

• Solicit or accept honoraria (see R.C. 102.01(H) and 102.03(H)) ; 
• During public service, and for one year after leaving public service, represent any person, in any 

fashion, before any public agency, with respect to a matter in which the official or employee 
personally participated while serving with the city; 



• Use or disclose confidential information protected by law, unless appropriately authorized; or 
• Use, or authorize the use of, his or her title, the name "City of Delaware," or the City's logo in a 

manner that suggests impropriety, favoritism, or bias by the City or the official or employee. 
This includes, but is not limited to using use of title, "City of Delaware" or the logo to obtain 
outside consulting work; 

For purposes of this policy: 
• "Anything of value" includes anything of monetary value, including, but not limited to, money, 

gifts, food or beverages, social event tickets and expenses, travel expenses, golf outings, 
consulting fees, compensation, or employment. "Value" means worth greater than de minimis 
or nominal, which is greater than $75 a year. This amount is cumulative, so each gift given 
throughout the year is added to the total, which must fall under the $75 annual limit 

• "Anyone doing business with the City" includes, but is not limited to, any person, corporation, or 
other party that is doing or seeking to do business with, regulated by, or has interests before 
City. 

Financial Disclosure 
Every City Council member required to file a financial disclosure statement must file a complete and 
accurate statement with the Ethics Commission by April 15 of each year. An official or employee 
elected, appointed, or employed to a filing position after February 15 must file a statement within 
ninety days of appointment or employment. 

Ethics Education 
A copy of the Ethics laws are provided to each City Council member when he or she begins the 
performance of official duties. Receipt of these laws are acknowledged as required in R.C. 
102.09(D). 

Between the election and the third meeting of the new City Council, the entire council will receive 
ethics training. If a member misses the training, it is the member's responsibility to schedule a make 
up session. Within 4 months of the swearing in of City Council, Council will attend public records 
and open meetings training. 

Assistance 
The City Attorney and Ethics Commission are available to provide advice and assistance regarding 
the application of the Ethics Law and related statutes. The City Attorney is available to answer 
questions involving this policy. The Commission can be contacted at (614) 466-7090. The 
Commission's web site address is: www.ethics.ohio.gov. 

Conducting City Council Meetings 
The City adopts Robert's Rules of Order as a tool to use as necessary to run City Council Meetings. 

Meeting Attendance 
Every effort will be made to schedule vacations outside of city council meetings. If a member cannot 
make it to a meeting, agenda items will not be moved to accommodate the absence. 

Penalties 
Failure of any City Official or city employee to abide by this Ethics policy, or to comply with the 
Ethics Law and related statutes could result in civil or criminal sanctions under the law. City Council 



members who violate Section 52 of the Charter are subject to removal under Section 12 of the 
Charter. In addition, a violation by a city employee will result in discipline, which could include 
termination. 

Changes 
This policy may be changed only by majority vote of the City Council. 

Effective date: 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 04/10/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-22    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       April 24, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR REDHAWK PROPERTY INVESTMENTS INC. FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING AN OUTDOOR 
SEATING AREA FOR YUMII KETTLE CORN AT 339 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
ON 0.52 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-22 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR REDHAWK PROPERTY 
INVESTMENTS INC. FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING AN 
OUTDOOR SEATING AREA FOR YUMII KETTLE CORN 
AT 339 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET ON 0.52 ACRES 
ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing an Outdoor 
Seating Area for Yumii Kettle Corn at 339 South Sandusky Street on 0.52 acres 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) (2017-0417); and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit allowing an Outdoor 
Seating Area for Yumii Kettle Corn at 339 South Sandusky Street on 0.52 acres 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. No outdoor sound system or outdoor entertainment shall be permitted 
in conjunction with the outdoor dining (seating) area due to the 
proximity of the residential uses to the east. 

2. The outdoor patio shall cease to operate at 10:30 p.m. everyday. 
3. No signage shall be permitted in the outdoor dining (seating) area. 
4. If the subject use changes to a more intensive commercial use per the 

Community Development and Planning Director interpretation 
(restaurant, bar, etc.), the outdoor dining (seating) area shall require a 
new Conditional Use Permit. 

5. Trash receptacles shall be provided. 
6. All items shall be kept in good repair.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 



 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-23    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       April 24, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SHORTY’S CASUAL CUISINE FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A PERMANENT OUTDOOR 
PATIO AT 554 WEST CENTRAL AVENUE ON APPROXIMATELY 1.1 ACRES 
ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-23 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR SHORTY’S CASUAL CUISINE 
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
CONSTRUCT A PERMANENT OUTDOOR PATIO AT 
554 WEST CENTRAL AVENUE ON APPROXIMATELY 
1.1 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Shorty’s Casual Cuisine 
to construct a permanent Outdoor Patio at 554 West Central Avenue on 
approximately 1.1 acres zoned B-3 (Community Business District) (2017-0407); 
and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit for Shorty’s Casual Cuisine 
to construct a permanent Outdoor Patio at 554 West Central Avenue on 
approximately 1.1 acres zoned B-3 (Community Business District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The parking lot driving aisle located adjacent to the patio shall be 
maintained at 24 feet per the zoning code.  

2. This approval does not constitute approval by the State of Ohio to 
occupy the space for the consumption / sale of alcoholic beverages.  
Such approval must be obtained from the State. 

3. No outdoor sound system or outdoor entertainment shall be permitted 
in conjunction with the outdoor patio area due to the proximity of the 
residential uses. 

4. The outdoor patio shall cease to operate at 10:00 p.m. Sunday thru 
Thursday and at 11pm on Friday and Saturday. 

5. The globe string lights shall be as submitted and turned off at the 
same the time outdoor patio ceases to operate. 

6. The lighting shall meet the minimum requirements of the zoning code 
and shall be approved by the Chief Building Official.  

7. The canvas sun shade (sand color) shall located above the pergola as 
submitted 

8. The proposed 6 foot high bushes shall be planted in pots and watered 
regularly to ensure survival. 

9. The proposed outdoor patio shall require zoning and building permit 
approval. 



10. No signage shall be permitted on the proposed fence. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-24    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       April 24, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND R-4 
(MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO B-3 AND R-4 PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON 
THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES 
LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-24 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND R-4 
(MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO B-3 
AND R-4 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON 
THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 
RIVER STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Tim Colatruglio from B-3 
(Community Business District) and R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) 
to B-3 and R-4 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street (2017-0408); and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment for Tim Colatruglio from B-3 
(Community Business District) and R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) 
to B-3 and R-4 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with 
the following condition that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of use of any existing structure(s) 
or property shall require conformance to all provisions of the 
Development Text and any conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 



PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 04/10/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-25    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       April 24, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN 
PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 
45 RIVER STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-25 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER 
STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN 
PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street Business Park on 
thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres located at 45 
River Street (2017-0411); and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of 
a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for River Street Business Park on 
thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres located at 45 
River Street, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 18    DATE: 04/10/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-26    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN 
PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 
45 RIVER STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1129 Procedures of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-26 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN 
PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street (2017-0410); and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Preliminary Development Plan for River Street 
Business Park on thirteen properties encompassing approximately 2.594 acres 
located at 45 River Street, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with 
the following conditions that: 
 

1.     The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2.    A guard rail on the west side of River Street adjacent to the curbs cuts 
shall be installed per engineering requirements for safety reasons. 
A sidewalk on the east side of River Street along the frontage of the 
development shall be installed per engineering requirements. 

3.      The existing building and the new buildings shall achieve compliance 
with the design standards of the approved development text. Building 
elevations shall be submitted prior to Final Development Plan 
approval. 

4.      The appropriate amount of street and front yard trees per the zoning 
code shall be installed along River Street or elsewhere on the site as 
determined through the Final Development Plan process. 

5.      Six foot high evergreen trees at installation planted 20 feet on center 
to form a continuous buffer shall be planted adjacent to the 
residential houses to the north. 

6.      Foundation landscaping shall be required for each building. 



7.     The owner shall be required to replant, permanently preserve treed 
area and/or pay a tree replacement fee preliminary calculated of 
$35,100 per the submitted tree survey to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations along with the approved 
development text. 

8.      Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade 
Tree Commission. 

9.      The engineering department requires typical street lights along River 
Street adjacent to the site or parking lot lighting that would extend 
the appropriate illumination on River Street 

10. A lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 

11. The thirteen parcels shall be consolidated after the Alley Vacation and 
Final Development Plan approval but prior to the occupancy permit of 
the first new building. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 19      DATE: 04/10/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-27    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MARONDA HOMES APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR CURTIS FARMS PHASE 4 CONSISTING OF 32 SINGLE FAMILY 
LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 7.411 ACRES ZONED R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON DELAWARE DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat Submission 
Requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on April 5, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-27 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MARONDA HOMES APPROVING A 
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR CURTIS FARMS PHASE 
4 CONSISTING OF 32 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 7.411 ACRES ZONED R-4 (MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON 
DELAWARE DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of April 5, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for Maronda Homes for Curtis 
Farms Phase 4 consisting of 32 single family lots on approximately 7.411 acres 
zoned R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) and located on Delaware Drive 
(PC 2017-0422); and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for Maronda Homes for Curtis 
Farms Phase 4 consisting of 32 single family lots on approximately 7.411 acres 
zoned R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) and located on Delaware Drive,  
is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department.  

2. All requirements of Ordinance 08-104 and required plat notes relative to 
special assessments shall be completed prior to recording of the Final 
Plat for Phase 4.   

3. The houses shall be required to comply with the Residential Design 
Criteria and Performance Standards of Section 1171.08 of the Planning 
& Zoning Code along with 50% of the front elevations shall be 
constructed of natural materials. 

4. The developer shall extend a bike/pedestrian path from the subject park 
to the Schultz Elementary School to the west per the submitted plan. 

5. The developer shall supply details of the improvements to the parkland, 
including play structures as approved by staff prior the recording of the 
final plat. 



6. The park and proposed amenities shall be maintained by the 
Homeowners Association but shall be dedicated for public use with an 
easement agreement. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























City Manager Report 20170410 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: April 10, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
  March 21 
  * Strand Board Meeting 

* Meeting with Tom Price and Barry McGraw with Soybean  
Association 

March 22 
* 2017 IronMan Organizational Meeting 
* Pickaway to Delaware YMCA Meeting 
March 27 
* Rotary Meeting 
* City Council Meeting 
March 29 
* St. Mary’s Open House and Tour 
March 30 
* Meeting with Marty Saperstein 
April 3 
* Rotary 
April 4 
* Dedication of Ohio Living Sarah Moore The Rehab Suites 
* Public Works/Public Utilities Committee Meeting 

 
  
 





CONTRACT APPROVAL – April 10, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Tischler Bise Comprehensive Study Update of City’s 

Impact Fees 
$47,650.00 City Manager 

Pomeroy & Associates, Ltd. Jegs Boulevard Extension-Preliminary 
Alignment 

$10,000-
budgeted 

Public Works 

Renergy, Inc Sludge Disposal N/A Public Utilities 
Delaware City Board of Education Agreement for EMS- 2017 Hayes High 

School Graduation 
$116.20/hr Fire 

Squire, Patton, Boggs, LLP Bond Attorney Services $10,250.00 Finance 
Wide Open West Temporary Easement for fiber optic lines N/A Public Works 
Focus 3 Focus 3 leadership training to police dept $11,560.00 Police 
     


	01 20170410 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20170327 minutes
	03 20170228 shade tree minutes
	04 20161004 public works
	05 2070301 planning minutes
	06 fact sheet res 17-24 amend res 13-19 establish sister city
	07 res 17-24 amend res 13-19 establish sister city advisory board
	08 res 17- amend 13-19 sister city
	09 fact sheet res 17-25  committee appointments
	10 res 17-25 committee appoints
	11-res 17-25 committee appoints mike rush
	12 Aldi Liquor Permit
	13 Aldi Liquor Permit Background-1
	14 fact sheet res 17-20 bike plan 2025
	15 res 17-20 bike plan 2025
	16 res 17-20 bike plan executive summary
	17 fact sheet ord 17-16  amend 1168 tree preservation
	18 ord 17-16  amend chapter 1168 tree preservation
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-16

	19 ord 17-16 amend chapter 1168 tree staff report
	20 fact sheet Solid Waste Pilot Program WLF
	21 res 17-26 for Bulk Collection Pilot Program WLF 4.5.17
	22 res 17-26 Bulk Item Pilot Program
	23 fact sheet res 17-27 conduct policy
	24 res 17-27  code of conduct
	25 res 17-27 conduct policy draft
	Code of Conduct
	For
	B. Improper Conduct



	26 res 12-29 council relations policy code of ethics
	27 fact sheet ord 17-22  yumii cup
	AN ORDINANCE FOR REDHAWK PROPERTY INVESTMENTS INC. FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING AN OUTDOOR SEATING AREA FOR YUMII KETTLE CORN AT 339 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET ON 0.52 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT).

	28 ord 17-22 Yumii Kettle Corn CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR REDHAWK PROPERTY INVESTMENTS INC. FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING AN OUTDOOR SEATING AREA FOR YUMII KETTLE CORN AT 339 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET ON 0.52 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT).

	29 ord 17-22 yumii staff report
	30 fact sheet ord 17-23   Shortys CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR SHORTY’S CASUAL CUISINE FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A PERMANENT OUTDOOR PATIO AT 554 WEST CENTRAL AVENUE ON APPROXIMATELY 1.1 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT).

	31 ord 17-23  Shorty's CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR SHORTY’S CASUAL CUISINE FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A PERMANENT OUTDOOR PATIO AT 554 WEST CENTRAL AVENUE ON APPROXIMATELY 1.1 ACRES ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT).

	32 ord 17-23  Shorty's CUP staff report
	33 fact sheet ord 17-24 River Street Business Park REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO B-3 AND R-4 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTE...

	34 ord 17-24  River Street Business Park REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO B-3 AND R-4 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTE...

	35 ord 17-24, 25, 26  River Street Business Park Staff Report
	36 fact sheet ord 17- River Street Business Park CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 R...

	37 ord 17-25  River Street CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 R...

	38 fact sheet ord 17-26  River Street Business Park PDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET.

	39 ord 17-26 River Street Business Park PDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ON THIRTEEN PROPERTIES ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.594 ACRES LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET.

	40 fact sheet ord 17-27 Curtis Farms Phase 4 FSP
	41 ord 17-27 Curtis Farms Phase 4 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-27
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	42 ord 17-27  fin subdiv plat curtis farms phase 4
	43 city managers report 20170410
	44 April Calender
	45 20170410 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – April 10, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	City Manager
	$47,650.00
	Tischler Bise
	Comprehensive Study Update of City’s Impact Fees

	Public Works
	$10,000-budgeted
	Pomeroy & Associates, Ltd.
	Jegs Boulevard Extension-Preliminary Alignment

	Public Utilities
	N/A
	Renergy, Inc
	Sludge Disposal

	Fire
	$116.20/hr
	Delaware City Board of Education
	Agreement for EMS- 2017 Hayes High School Graduation

	Finance
	$10,250.00
	Squire, Patton, Boggs, LLP
	Bond Attorney Services

	Public Works
	N/A
	Wide Open West
	Temporary Easement for fiber optic lines

	Police
	$11,560.00
	Focus 3
	Focus 3 leadership training to police dept



